
 

 

 
 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

MONDAY 19TH OCTOBER, 2020 
 

AT 10.30 AM 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 
Councillors 
 

Zakia Zubairi 
Linda Freedman 
John Marshall 

 
 

 
 

 
* The licensing authority will only allow licensing decisions to be taken by a minimum of three 

Councillors.  In the event of one Member being unable to attend, their place will be 

substituted by another Member taken from the membership of the full Licensing Committee.  

In the event of this substitution taking place, all parties will be informed of the change of 

Membership at the beginning of the hearing. 
 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Pakeezah Rahman pakeezah.rahman@barnet.gov.uk 07784 

290745 
 

Media Relations contact: Tristan Garrick 020 8359 2454 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE: 

THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO WHICH TO 
ACCESS THE MEETING CAN DO SO BY LISTENING TO THE LIVE AUDIO-RECORDING 

OF THE MEETING. THE AGENDA FOR THIS MEETING IS AVAILABLE HERE: 
HTTPS://BARNET.MODERNGOV.CO.UK/IELISTMEETINGS.ASPX?COMMITTEEID=189  

 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 

mailto:pakeezah.rahman@barnet.gov.uk
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/IELISTMEETINGS.ASPX?COMMITTEEID=189


 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  
 

 

2.   ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY)  
 

 

3.   DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS AND NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS (IF ANY)  
 

 

4.   LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARING PROCEDURE  
 

3 - 6 

5.   REPORT OF TRADING STANDARDS & LICENSING MANAGER  
 

7 - 278 

a)   APPENDIX 1 REPRESENTATIONS  
 

 

279 - 288 

b)   APPLICANT'S REBUTTAL AND COMMENTS  
 

 

289 - 316 

 Site Map - Nez Watford Way  
 

 

 

6.   MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

7.   DELIBERATION BY THE SUB-COMMITTEE IN PRIVATE 
SESSION  
 

 

8.   RE-ADMISSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC: 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE DECISION OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE  
 

 

9.   ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 

 

 
 
 



   

LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

HEARINGS PROCEDURE 

 
 

 
General points 

 
The following procedure is based on Regulations made by the Secretary of State under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (“the Hearings Regulations”) which may be viewed or downloaded from 

the website of the Department for Culture, Media and Sport by following links from 
www.culture.gov.uk  

 
The procedure is intended as a general framework to ensure natural justice and a fair 

hearing.  The conduct of individual hearings may vary slightly according to circumstances 
and the discretion of the Chairman.  In all cases, however, this general framework will be 

followed. 
 

The procedure allows each party a maximum period of 5 minutes in which to present their 
case (Regulations 16 & 24).  At the end of the time allowed, the Chairman will terminate the 
presentation and the hearing will proceed in the form of a discussion led by the authority to 

explore points of dispute.  The discussion will not be timed. 
 

The procedure is subject to periodic review and amendment to reflect best practice and 
relevant legislative changes.  An updated version of this procedure is published as soon as 

possible following any such amendments. 
 

 
 

Governance 
Officer 
 
 
Chairman 

 To seek nominations for Chairman 

 Elect Chairman 

 Hand over to the Chairman 
 

 Introduces him/herself and Members of the Committee, and outlines 
their roles.   

  Introduces Licensing, Legal and Governance Officer. 
  Explains that Legal and Governance Officers will be present during 

the Committee’s deliberations to advise only, and that the Licensing 
Officer will be excluded from deliberations. 

  Asks parties present to introduce themselves. 
  Outlines procedure to be followed. 
  Asks all parties to confirm their understanding of the procedure. 
  Clarifies any aspect(s) of the procedure where any parties are 

uncertain or asks Legal or Governance Officer as appropriate to 
clarify. 

Governance 
Officer 

 Informs Committee of absent parties. 

  Details persons whom a party is seeking permission to represent 
them at hearing. 

  Panel confer regarding permission. 
  Chairman announces decision regarding permission. 
 3

AGENDA ITEM 4

http://www.culture.gov.uk/


   

 
Licensing Officer presents the report to the Committee 
  Is a statement of the facts including details of the application and 

operating schedule, relevant policy details, detail representations 
made, a chronology of events and highlights the points on which the 
Authority requires clarification. 

 
Applicant  Presents opening submissions and clarifies points raised by Authority 

in notice of hearing.  Time allowed 5 mins. 
 
Other parties  Presents opening submissions either in person or by spokes person  

Time allowed 5 mins per interested party.   
  
Note regarding use of video evidence 
Video evidence must be in DVD format and will form part of the relevant party's five 
minutes opening submission. Any party wishing to use video evidence must submit a copy 
to the Authority along with sufficient, identical extra copies to serve on all the opposing 
parties – i.e. if the applicant is submitting it, there must be enough copies for all parties 
making representations and if a party making representations is submitting it there must 
be a copy for the applicant. The recording must be edited down to the highlights, 
containing only relevant matter which relates to the written representation previously 
submitted. In addition, a description of how, when and where the video was recorded and 
what it contains must be submitted. These must be supplied to the Authority at least five 
working days before the hearing. 
 
Members question Licensing Officer on Policy 
 
Discussion 
 
Chairman leads a discussion concentrating on points of dispute: 
 
Chairman asks Applicant what he disputes in other parties’ submissions, and asks other 
parties to comment. 
 
Chairman proceeds through all objectors dealing with all matters of contention. 
 
When Chairman feels all matters have been thoroughly discussed and all parties have 
been given a fair and equal opportunity to comment and make representations, she/he 
closes discussion. 
 
Determination 
 
There are two procedures depending on whether or not determination is to be made at the 
end of the Hearing or within five working days of the Hearing.  This later announcement of 
determination is permitted in terms of the Legislation for certain types of applications. 
 
 
Chairman informs all present that the Committee will deliberate, that Legal and 
Governance Officer will remain to advise but will not be part of decision-making 
process, and that all others must leave (under Regulation 14). 
  Parties, apart from Legal and Governance Officer, leave the room. 
  The Committee deliberates, with advice as required from Legal and 

Governance Officer, and reaches a conclusion.  The Legal officer 
may assist, as required, in formulating the wording of the 
determination. 

  Parties return. 
4



   

  Chairman reads out determination, and advises it will be sent in 
writing to all parties. 

  Opportunity for determination to be clarified by any interested party 
who is unclear. 

  Chairman gives advice about appealing against the determination. 
  Chairman thanks all for attending and closes the meeting. 
 
…Within five working days of the hearing 
  Chairman explains requirement to determine the Hearing within five 

workings days, and advises that the Committee will proceed to 
deliberate and announce the determination within that time. 

 
  During deliberations, Legal and Governance Officers remain to 

advise on law and procedure as required.  The Legal Officer may 
assist, as required, in formulating the wording of the determination.  
The Licensing Officer plays no part in the determination and 
withdraws for this part of the proceedings.  

  Chairman advises all parties that they will receive written notification 
of the determination within five working days of the Hearing date, 
together with general information on how to appeal against the 
determination. 

  Chairman thanks all parties for attending and invites the applicant, 
objector(s), other party(ies) and the Licensing Officer to leave. 

  
 

Information on Appealing against the decision 
 

You may at any time before the expiration of a period of 21 days from notification appeal 
to Willesden Magistrates' Court, 448 High Road London England NW10 2DZ (Telephone 

020 8955 0555, DX 110850 Willesden 2) by way of Complaint for an Order.  The Court 
may either dismiss the appeal, substitute for the decision appealed against any other 
decision which could have been made by the Licensing Authority or remit the case to the 
Licensing Authority to dispose of it in accordance with the directions of the court, and can 
make such order as to costs as it thinks fit. 

 
 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



7

AGENDA ITEM 5



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



This page is intentionally left blank



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



Dear Jane Ferguson, 

Thank you for your email. 

We have passed your email across to the appropriate officer to look into this matter and 
advise you accordingly. 

Regards, 

Licensing Team 
Customer Service Advsior for Re  
Address:  2 Bristol Avenue, Colindale, NW9 4EW 
Email: LicensingAdmin@barnet.gov.uk   
Work:  0208 359 7995 
Website:  www.capita.co.uk/property 

 www.re-ltd.co.uk 

Re (Regional Enterprise) Ltd is a joint venture between Capita plc and The London Borough 
of Barnet. Registered Office: 17 Rochester Row, London, England SW1P 1QT. Registered in 
England 08615172. 
Please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email? 
RESTRICTED 
The information in this e-mail and any attachments is confidential and may be subject to 
legal professional privilege. Unless you are the intended recipient or his/her representative 
you are not authorised to, and must not, read, copy, distribute, use or retain this message or 
any part of it. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately. 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Jane Ferguson xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  
Sent: 08 September 2020 16:07 
To: LicensingAdmin <LicensingAdmin@barnet.gov.uk> 
Subject: At-Nez supermarkets license application (Five Ways Corner NW7) 

To Licensing admin 
My wife and I wish to object in the strongest possible terms to the granting of a license to 
provide alcohol to customers from 2300 hrs to 0500 hrs. 

1 Page Street is a residential street outside of school hours, having people arriving and 
leaving licensed premises during the above hours will obviously create noise and 
disturbance. 

2 There is little parking available nearby, the slip road outside the supermarket is always full 
with parked cars every evening from about 1800 hrs. 

3 We have lived here since 1977 and have seen various attempts to establish a going 
concern on this site, a car tire outlet, a car showroom, restaurants, a pub( that attracted 
disturbance drugs and a quite regular police attendance) all have failed due I think to the 
lack of parking availability and the unattractive location and very close proximity to Five 
Ways Corner. 

Sincerely Yours Ken and Jane Ferguson 27 Page Street 

Sent from my iPad 

123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



From: Sandeeppatelxxxxxx xxxxxxxxxxx 
Sent: 14 September 2020 13:13 
To: Hammond, Elisabeth <Elisabeth.Hammond@Barnet.gov.uk> 
Subject: Fwd: Regarding 418c Watford Way 
Subject: Re: Regarding 418c Watford Way 

Dear Elisabeth Hammond 
Your ref LAPRE1/20/63189 

We realise some of our customers and residents locally have received a email from you saying that 
the petition is not valid. 
Please note this letter also was sent with the petition and my customers are worried about antisocial 
behaviour& public Safety as there is a local school not too far away. 

I’ve spoken to my local councillor John Hart who told me to send this letter to you as well. 

Kind regards  
Sandeep patel 

136

mailto:Elisabeth.Hammond@Barnet.gov.uk


On Sep 1, 2020 at 10:33 pm, <Sandeep Patel> wrote: 

Sent from my iPhone 

137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



This page is intentionally left blank



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



This page is intentionally left blank



279

AGENDA ITEM 5a

Elisabeth.Hammond
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_1
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_2
Highlight



280

Elisabeth.Hammond_3
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_4
Highlight



281

Elisabeth.Hammond_5
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_6
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_7
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_8
Highlight



282

Elisabeth.Hammond_9
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_10
Highlight



283

Elisabeth.Hammond_11
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_12
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_13
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_14
Highlight



284

Elisabeth.Hammond_15
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_16
Highlight



285

Elisabeth.Hammond_17
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_18
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_19
Highlight



286

Elisabeth.Hammond_20
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_21
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_22
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_23
Highlight



287

Elisabeth.Hammond_24
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_25
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_26
Highlight



This page is intentionally left blank



P a g e  | 1 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

Information for Licensing Sub Committee - inclusion in the hearing papers 
 
New application for a premises licence NEZ 418c Watford Way London NW7 2QJ 
 
This document sets out our case and rebuttal of the points raised in the petition, and 
identically worded forms that have been received as representations. 
 
To assist the committee with our case a number of documents are attached as an appendix. 
These include items we have submitted in support of the application, and by way of explaining 
how the business will operate. Also included are copies of the various documents produced 
by Mr Patel, who is the owner of a nearby shop “Nisa Day 1” situated at 424A Watford Way 
London NW7 2QJ. All of these are shown in the appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Index 
            Page 
 

 Introduction          2 

 Rebuttal of representations & concern re the submission &   3 
relevance of them 

 Rebuttal and Comments re the Representations    4 – 5 

 Sect 182 Guidance April 2018       6 – 8 

 Statement of Licensing Policy BARNET January 2020    9 – 11 

 Licensing Act 2003         12 – 13 

 Hearings Regs         14 

 End of Report         15 
 
 

 Appendix ‘A’ - letter encouraging people to make objections - attached separately 
 Appendix ‘B’ – Mr Patel’s pre written objection form   - attached separately 
 Appendix ‘C’ – Mr Patel’s pre written petition form  - attached separately 
 Appendix ‘D’ – Applicants letter for objectors   - attached separately 
 Appendix ‘E’ – Applicants email to ward councillors  - attached separately 

 
 
 
  

289

AGENDA ITEM 5b

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 2 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

 
Introduction 
The applicant has consulted with the expert and professional bodies who ensure that the 
licensing objectives are upheld by licensed premises. 
 
They have also sought to reach out to everyone who has submitted a representation, and 
offered the opportunity of a meeting to further explain the business model. The 3 ward 
councillors have similarly been contacted by email and asked for their views, comments and 
suggestions. The licensing consultant acting in this matter provided contact details for anyone 
wishing to obtain additional information or ask any questions. Up to the current date no 
response has been received from any party.  
 
No representations have been received from any of the responsible authorities, in particular 
the police who are the experts on crime and disorder, and the council’s own departments, 
Safeguarding Children Board, Health and Safety Team, Nuisance Team, Trading standards  
 and the Licensing team. All of these bodies are experts in their own field, who advise and 
guide the council. 
None of them have raised any concerns or evidence, with regard to the applicant and 
application, to suggest that it is likely that granting the application would increase the risk to; 
children and young persons, safety, noise nuisance, sale of illegal goods, or any other person 
due to the licensable activity.    
  
It is highly unlikely that this family run business would do anything other than fully promote the 
4 licensing objectives. It will certainly be an asset to the area, and a vast improvement on 
what was a run down and unsightly vacant site. 
 
  

290

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 3 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

Rebuttal of representations and concern re the submission and relevance of them 
 
Mr Patel has orchestrated a thoroughly unpleasant and vexatious business campaign against 
the applicant and their application. Mr Patel: 

 Produced and delivered a letter encouraging people to make objections against the 
application (Appendix ‘A’)  

 Encouraged residents and his customers to sign the pre written forms which were 
attached to the letter and apparently pushed for customers to sign these whenever 
they were in the store (Appendix ‘B’) and 

 Produced an identically worded document to the first one with a supplementary 
document attached and headed with the words “Petition” (Appendix ‘C’). 

 Offered to deliver the completed documents himself to the council. It appears that this 
was the case with most of them.  

 
Trade based objections are irrelevant for the purpose of the licensing act 2003. The content of 
virtually every objection is identical and they all reference “the need” for additional premises. 
As you are aware “need” is not a relevant matter for the licensing act 2003, and is clearly 
explained in Barnet’s Statement of Licensing Policy, and the statutory guidance at sect 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
None of the objectors have outlined what they feel would resolve or reduce their concerns, as 
per Barnet’s statement of licensing policy at paragraph 12.15. 
We have also not received a single reply to the explanation letter, that was kindly sent out by 
the council to every named person. 
A number of them have also withdrawn their objections, whilst others have confirmed that 
they will not be attending the hearing.  
We have grave concerns regarding the authenticity of the representations, and that many of 
these may well have been signed without the signatory realising the full content of the pre 
written response. 
We respectfully request that the officer presenting the information for the hearing 
includes the number of people who responded to the council’s letter, as this would be 
a reasonable indication of the amount of genuine representations. 
You will also note that some of the addresses are shown in Boroughs outside of Barnet e.g. 
Uxendon Hill HA9 which is in Brent near Wembley stadium. 
In all of my 25 years dealing with both the previous licensing act, and the current one. I have 
never seen a campaign driven by a single person, where all of the responses use the same 
forms written by that person, and lack any different wording, or reasons for objecting to the 
application.   
 
We ask that the licensing committee carefully scrutinise this and give due consideration to 
them being mainly irrelevant, vexatious, lacking in any evidence, and effectively a trade-
based objection. One that is principally concerned with “need”, and disguised by Mr Patel to 
appear as genuine representations. 
As such we respectfully request that the licensing sub-committee attach no weight to 
them in reaching their decision. 
 
  

291

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 4 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

Rebuttal and Comments re the Representations 
 
Appendix ‘A’ Information provided to Mr Patel’s Customers 
This document clearly demonstrates that Mr Patel’s campaign and the wording he has 
provided for the pre written objections is entirely based on the irrelevant (illegal) grounds of a 
“trade objection” He uses the phrases: 

a) if the above application is granted it would be extremely detrimental to our business 
b) we are seeking the help of the local community 
c) we request your help and assistance to oppose this application 
d) to make the process of application easier we have enclosed a draft template letter 
e) bring it to my shop by the 15th September and I will then send all of the signed copies 

to the licensing committee 
 
Appendix ‘B’ (petition) 
We respectfully request that the licensing sub committee strikes all of the information detailed 
in these documents as irrelevant. 
None of it has any relevance for the licensing act 2003. The content is purely trade based, 
and with reference to need for another premises. Neither of which carry any weight in the 
licensing sub committee’s determination. 
 
Appendix ‘C’ pre written objection provided by Mr Patel 
For ease of reference we have broken this down into 6 paragraphs which will be addressed 
below: 

1) Introduction/outline of application – we have no comments regarding this 
 

2) Introduction/outline of application – we have no comments regarding this 
 

3) Introduction/outline of application – we have no comments regarding this 
 

4) It is not a matter for the licensing act to address, limiting or setting targets for the 
number of premises permitted to sell alcohol in a particular area. If this was indeed a 
particular issue in the ward it would have been included as part of a cumulative impact 
area. There is no data to support such an area for this ward. 
The case for “need” and the number and type of premises is a matter for planning. No 
evidence has been provided by Mr Patel or any of the other objectors that these 
premises would increase, crime, disorder or public nuisance. If these are at 
problematic levels, then they must be caused by the premises currently selling alcohol 
in the area, including Mr Patel’s own shop. However, during my communications with 
the Police, they are unaware of these issues and have no data to support this. 
Barnet Councils own analysis on “alcohol-related ambulance call outs” confirms that 
the Mill Hill ward is the 2nd lowest out of the 21 wards, returning a figure of 7.5 cases 
per 10,000 head of population. 
Barnet as a Borough had the 2nd lowest crime rates for Violence, sexual offences and 
Drugs out of all the 32 London Boroughs (year to June 2019) Mill Hill is also amongst one of 
the safest wards in Barnet for all crimes. There are also no recent incidents, actions or 
operations in relation to alcohol related crime and disorder or children being at risk due to 
licensed premises, recorded on the Police Safer Neighbourhood Team site. This alone would 
discount the allegations and fears contained in this paragraph. There is certainly no evidence, 
or likelihood that granting a licence to these premises is more likely than not to change this.   

 
5)  As per the information above, there is no evidence to support that this ward suffers from 

higher levels of noise nuisance and anti-social behaviour, or that it has been occurring since 
2003 and has been caused by the 2003 Licensing Act. This act didn’t come into effect until the 

292

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 5 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

24th November 2005. I was certainly not aware of any issues or increase in the incidents 
complained of. As stated in bullet point 4, even if the issues complained of were facts, they 
would currently be happening and have a causal link to the all licensed premises, of which Mr 
Patel’s shop is one of them.  
 

6) The presence of 2 girl’s schools in the nearby area is not a matter for the licensing sub 
committee to consider. The safeguarding children from harm team have not flagged 
any issues in relation to this application or the applicant, and no evidence has been 
provided that the applicant, or indeed the premises, present any threat to children or 
anyone else’s safety. 
Similarly, there is absolutely no evidence or reasonable cause that; alcohol sales will 
increase if a premises licence is granted, alcoholics will gather in the underpass, or 
incidents of broken glass will increase. 
With regard to public nuisance during the night, this is a matter covered by the 
operating schedule, the conditions volunteered, and the professionalism of the 
operator. It is highly unlikely that these premises will cause any issues. 
 
The request made by all of the representations is exactly the same, that the licensing 
authority should refuse the application. Ordinarily, and in all similar applications I have 
ever seen, a reasonable and proportionate request is made. It is inconceivable that 
virtually every single representation makes exactly the same request, with none of 
them outlining what they feel would resolve or reduce their concerns. This is shown as 
good practice and set out in Barnet’s Statement of Licensing Policy at paragraph 12.15 
 

 
  

293

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 6 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

Legislation – Guidance – Barnet’s SLP – Regulation’s 
 
 
Sect 182 Guidance April 2018 
 
Each application on its own merits 
1.17 Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the 
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls within 
the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and certificates must 
be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises and events 
concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of disproportionate and overly 
burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need for such conditions. 
Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be unlawful where they cannot 
be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual case. 
 
Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations 
9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on 
the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation from a 
local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from new 
licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a business 
person that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from entering the local 
area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance were inadequate, 
would be relevant. In other words, representations should relate to the impact of licensable 
activities carried on from premises on the objectives. For representations in relation to 
variations to be relevant, they should be confined to the subject matter of the variation. There 
is no requirement for a responsible authority or other person to produce a recorded history of 
problems at premises to support their representations, and in fact this would not be possible 
for new premises.  
 
9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a 
representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what might 
ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be considered to 
be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or annoyance, whether to a 
competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or justification. Vexatious 
circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival businesses and local knowledge 
will therefore be invaluable in considering such matters. Licensing authorities can consider 
the main effect of the representation, and whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it 
could reasonably be considered to be proportionate.  

9.6 Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness. 
Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and in relation to 
which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate.  
 
9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases it 
is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main source of 
advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police have a key role in 
managing the night-time economy and should have good working relationships with those 
operating in their local area. The police should usually therefore be the licensing authority’s 
main source of advice on matters relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing 
objective. However, any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may make representations 
with regard to any of the licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such 
representations. Licensing authorities must therefore consider all relevant representations 

294

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 7 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

from responsible authorities carefully, even where the reason for a particular responsible 
authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of a particular objective may not be 
immediately apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure 
that their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a 
hearing.  
9.14 Licensing authorities are not expected to act as responsible authorities on behalf of other 
parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or community groups) although there 
are occasions where the authority may decide to do so. Such parties can make relevant 
representations to the licensing authority in their own right, and it is reasonable for the 
licensing authority to expect them to make representations themselves where they are 
reasonably able to do so. However, if these parties have failed to take action and the 
licensing authority is aware of relevant grounds to make a representation, it may choose to 
act in its capacity as responsible authority.  

9.15 It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect that other responsible authorities 
should intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other 
responsible authority. For example, the police should make representations where the 
representations are based on concerns about crime and disorder. Likewise, it is reasonable to 
expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions to make representations 
where there are concerns about noise nuisance. Each responsible authority has equal 
standing under the 2003 Act and may act independently without waiting for representations 
from any other responsible authority.  
 
Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations  
9.26 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required 
under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with 
copies of the relevant representations that have been made.  

9.27 In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority 
may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal details, 
such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant.  

9.28 Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-founded 
fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis, they may 
wish to consider alternative approaches.  

9.29 For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority 
with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so that 
the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified.  

9.30 The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal 
details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general location 
within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered where the 
circumstances justify such action.  
 
Hours of trading 
10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which 
licensable activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would 
undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with appropriate 
conditions and/or different hours from those requested. 
10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for 
consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping unless 
there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those hours. 
 

295

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 8 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

The need for licensed premises 
14.19 There can be confusion about the difference between the “need” for premises and the 
“cumulative impact” of premises on the licensing objectives, for example, on crime and 
disorder. “Need” concerns the commercial demand for another pub or restaurant or hotel and 
is a matter for the planning authority and for the market. This is not a matter for a licensing 
authority in discharging its licensing functions or for its statement of licensing policy. 
 

Licensing hours 

14.51 With regard to licensing hours, the Government acknowledges that different licensing 

approaches may be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different 

areas. The 2003 Act gives the licensing authority power to make decisions regarding licensed 

opening hours as part of the implementation of its licensing policy statement and licensing 

authorities are best placed to make such decisions based on their local knowledge and in 

consultation with other responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always 

consider each application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, 

without giving individual consideration to the merits of each application. 

14.52 Statements of licensing policy should set out the licensing authority’s approach 

regarding licensed opening hours and the strategy it considers appropriate for the promotion 

of the licensing objectives in its area. The statement of licensing policy should emphasise the 

consideration which will be given to the individual merits of an application. The Government 

recognises that licensed premises make an important contribution to our local communities, 

and has given councils a range of tools to effectively manage the different pressures that 

licensed premises can bring. In determining appropriate strategies around licensed opening 

hours, licensing authorities cannot seek to restrict the activities of licensed premises where it 

is not appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to do so.  

296

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 9 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY - LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET 
January 2020 
 
5. Approach to licensing applications 
5.1 When exercising its licensing functions the Licensing Authority will not be influenced by 
the question of need. The question of whether or not there is a need for any particular 
premises is a commercial matter which is not relevant to the Licensing Authority’s 
considerations. The issue of need may be a matter for planning consideration or for the 
market to decide and does not form part of this licensing policy statement. 
 
4. Fundamental Principles 
4.5 In determining a licence application the overriding principle will be that each application 
will be determined on its individual merits. 
4.6 Nothing in the Licensing Policy will: 

o Undermine the rights of any person to apply the 2003 Act for a variety of permissions 
and have the application considered on its individual merits. 

o Override the right of any person to make representations on any application or seek a 
review of a licence or certificate where they are permitted to do so under the Act. 

4.7 The decision taken by the Licensing Authority will be focused on matters that are within 
the control of the individual licensees and others granted relevant permissions. Accordingly, 
these matters will centre on the premises and places being used for licensable activities and 
the vicinity of those premises and places. The Licensing Authority will focus on the direct 
impact of activities taking place at the licensed premises on both adults and children living in, 
working in or visiting the area concerned. 
4.8 In taking its decisions, the Licensing Authority will take into account that licensing law is 
not the primary mechanism for the control of anti-social behaviour once individuals are 
beyond the direct control of the premises concerned. Nonetheless, licensing law will be part of 
a holistic approach to the management of the evening and night-time economy in town and 
city centres 
4.9 Licence conditions imposed will be relevant to the individual application and appropriate to 
meet the licensing objectives. Licence conditions will not be imposed where other regulatory 
regimes, such as fire safety legislation, provide sufficient protection for patrons and other 
members of the public. 
4.14 Appropriate weight is given to all relevant representations made to the Licensing 
Authority. This does not include those representations which are considered to be frivolous, 
vexatious or repetitious, which will be disregarded. 
 
5. Approach to licensing applications 
5.1 When exercising its licensing functions the Licensing Authority will not be influenced by 
the question of need. The question of whether or not there is a need for any particular 
premises is a commercial matter which is not relevant to the Licensing Authority’s 
considerations. The issue of need may be a matter for planning consideration or for the 
market to decide and does not form part of this licensing policy statement. 
 
12. Representations 
12.1 Representations should be made in writing to the licensing authority. The interested 
party must ensure they include their name, address and contact details. Please be aware that 
the Licensing Act 2003 requires all parties that wish to make a representation against an 
application ensure that their name and addresses are included in the representation to make 
it valid. 
12.2 The name and address is required so that the Licensing Authority and the 
applicant or their representation can validate that the person making the 

297

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 10 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

representation is qualified to do so in terms of living or working in the vicinity of the 
premises concerned. 
12.3 In exceptional cases an interested party can request the Licensing Authority to withhold 
their details, in any event the original letter must contain the information required. 
12.4 All representations will be available in the public domain and some will be contained in 
reports that will be able to be viewed on the website. 
12.5 All representations must be about the likely effect of granting the licence or certificate on 
the promotion of at least one of the four licensing objectives. It would be wise, therefore, to 
explicitly link any representation to one or more of the objectives. 
12.6 It will also assist if the representations are specific to the premises and evidence based. 
Interested parties may, therefore wish to talk to the relevant responsible authority beforehand, 
or document problems themselves by, for example, keeping a diary or photographic evidence 
of any incidents. 
12.7 The Licensing Authority will need to be satisfied that there is an evidential and causal 
link between the representations made, and the effect on the licensing objectives. 
12.8 In addition, the Licensing Authority can only consider representations that are not 
“vexatious” or “frivolous”. Whether representations are frivolous or vexatious will be for the 
Licensing Authority to determine. For example, the Licensing Authority might find the 
representations were vexatious if they arise because of disputes between rival businesses or 
they might be frivolous representations if they plainly lacked seriousness. 
12.9 It is also important that an applicant is able to respond to a representation, for example, 
if they believe that it is not a “relevant” representation. If interested parties are concerned 
about possible intimidation, they could consider asking the appropriate responsible authority 
to make a representation on their behalf. 
12.10 If no relevant representations are made, the licence or variation must be granted, 
therefore interested party representations are very important. 
12.11 It may be beneficial for those wishing to make a representation to get the backing of 
other people living, or businesses operating in the vicinity of the premises. 
Note 12.12 is apparently missing from the policy (Typo ?) 
12.13 If any party is considering raising a petition, it is important to ensure that the Licensing 
Authority can determine whether all the signatories are within the ‘vicinity’ of the premises. 
So, including addresses and indicating clearly what representation(s) they are all making is 
essential. 
12.14 If interested parties want to ask another person, such as an MP or local Councillor to 
represent them, it is advisable to make such a request in writing so that the individual can 
demonstrate he or she was asked. 
12.15 Representees should address how they would like the situation to be rectified. The 
Licensing Authority often has to balance conflicting needs when determine licensing 
applications, it is beneficial for representees to outline what they feel would resolve or reduce 
their concerns. 
 
14. Integrating strategies & avoiding duplication 
14.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the need to avoid, so far as possible, duplication of 
the existing legislation and other mechanisms to deal with any environmental or other impacts 
on the leisure economy such as: 

o Planning controls 
o Positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment 
o Powers of the Licensing Authority to designate public places where the consumption of 

alcohol is not permitted 
o Police enforcement of disorder and anti-social behaviour 
o Prosecuting of personal licence holders and staff selling alcohol to those underage. 

298

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 11 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

o Police and the Licensing Authority’s powers to close down instantly any licence 
premises on the ground of disorder or likely to cause disorder or excessive noise 
emanating from the premises 

o Environmental Protection Act 1990 
o Children Act 1989 
o Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 etc. 
o Powers of the police/local residents/businesses ability to seek a review of a licence. 

14.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that there should be a clear separation of the 
planning and licensing regimes in respect of applications to avoid duplication or a re-run of 
the planning application process but also recognises that some factors affecting the planning 
decision may also affect the decision of the Licensing Committee. 
 
 
 
  

299

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 12 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

Licensing Act 2003 
 
18 Determination of application for premises licence 
(1) This section applies where the relevant licensing authority— 
(a) receives an application for a premises licence made in accordance with section 17, and 
(b) is satisfied that the applicant has complied with any requirement imposed on him under 
subsection (5) of that section. 
 
(2) Subject to subsection (3), the authority must grant the licence in accordance with the 
application subject only to— 
(a) such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule accompanying the 
application, and 
(b) any conditions which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence. 
 
(3) Where relevant representations are made, the authority must— 
(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person who 
has made such representations agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and 
(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned in subsection (4) 
(if any) as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
(4) The steps are— 
(a) to grant the licence subject to— 
(i) the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as the authority 
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and 
(ii) any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence; 
(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 
application relates; 
(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
(d) to reject the application. 
 
(5) For the purposes of subsection (4)(a)(i) the conditions mentioned in subsection 
(2)(a) are modified if any of them is altered or omitted or any new condition is 
added. 
 
(6) For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means 
representations which— 
(a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, 
(b) meet the requirements of subsection (7), 
(c) if they relate to the identity of the person named in the application as 
the proposed premises supervisor, meet the requirements of subsection 
(9), and 
(d) are not excluded representations by virtue of section 32 (restriction on making 
representations following issue of provisional statement). 
 
(7) The requirements of this subsection are— 
(a) that the representations were made by an interested party or responsible authority within 
the period prescribed under section 
17(5)(c), 
(b) that they have not been withdrawn, and 

300

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 13 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

(c) in the case of representations made by an interested party (who is not also a responsible 
authority), that they are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority, frivolous or 
vexatious. 
 
(8) Where the authority determines for the purposes of subsection (7)(c) that any 
representations are frivolous or vexatious, it must notify the person who made them of the 
reasons for its determination. 
 
(9) The requirements of this subsection are that the representations— 
(a) were made by a chief officer of police for a police area in which the premises are situated, 
and 
(b) include a statement that, due to the exceptional circumstances of the case, he is satisfied 
that the designation of the person concerned as the premises supervisor under the premises 
licence would undermine the crime prevention objective. 
 
(10) In discharging its duty under subsection (2) or (3)(b), a licensing authority may 
grant a licence under this section subject to different conditions in respect of— 
(a) different parts of the premises concerned; 
(b) different licensable activities. 
 
  

301

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 14 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

Hearings Regs 
 
S T A T U T O R Y I N S T R U M E N T S - 2005 No. 44 
LICENCES AND LICENSING 
The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 
 
19. The authority shall disregard any information given by a party or any person to whom 
permission to appear at the hearing is given by the authority which is not relevant to— 
(a) their application, representations or notice (as applicable) or in the case of another person, 
the application representations or notice of the party requesting their appearance, and 
(b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or, in relation to a hearing to consider a notice 
given by a chief officer of police, the crime prevention objective. 
  

302

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 15 

 

ALES Licensing Tel: 07919 446 323 – aleslicensing@mail.com – www.aleslicesning.com 

 

 

 

 

End of Report 

303

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 'A'

305



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 'B'

307

Elisabeth.Hammond_27
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_28
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_29
Highlight

Elisabeth.Hammond_30
Highlight



This page is intentionally left blank



(4)

(3)

(1)

(2)

(5)

(6)

Appendix 'C'

309



This page is intentionally left blank



P a g e  | 1 

 

ALES Licensing - Duly authorised agent for the applicant 
Tel: 07919 446 323   aleslicensing@mail.com   www.aleslicesning.com 

Additional Information about the application – NEZ 418c Watford Way London NW72QJ 
 
Dear Resident, 
 
We are a family run business and also live in the London Borough of Barnet. 
It is not our intention to allow the local area to become a crime hot spot, or attract people to 
our premises who act other than in a considerate and polite way to local residents. 
 
Our application for a new premises licence has attracted a number of representation’s 
(objections) Unfortunately some of the objections are based on points about the hours and 
activities that are not correct. 
 
We hope that the following information will be of assistance to you, and set the record 
straight. The information sets out the facts of the application, how we intend to operate the 
premises, and the conditions we have asked to be attached to the licence to ensure that the 4 
licensing objectives are fully promoted. 
 
We hope that after reading this you will consider withdrawing your representation and 
communicate this to the Licensing Team. 
If you have any questions, or require additional information, please email or ring our 
licensing consultant Mark Altman, his contact details are contained in the footer. 
 
It is very important to note that even if this application was refused, no licence, or other 
permission, is required for these premises to operate 24 hours a day e.g. for sale of 
general supermarket goods. 
Whilst we are currently not open later than midnight, our business model does incorporate an 
option to do this at a later stage. Before doing so we have taken the decision to close no later 
than midnight, until we have had the opportunity to assess the dynamics and viability of 
operating the extended hours. 
 
More importantly the licensable activity we have requested does not allow alcohol to 
be sold for consumption, on, or off, the premises after midnight. 
 
Licensable Activity on every day: 

1) Off sales of alcohol between 8am & midnight. 
2) Specific limited on sales of alcohol, only in the café area, between 10am and midnight 

(see conditions 7 & 8) 
3) Late-Night Refreshment between 11pm and 5am the following day. No one may be 

seated in the premises to consume hot food or drink, and we do not have a kitchen, so 
the products will mainly be hot drinks and possibly some re-heated (microwave) food 

  

Appendix 'D'

311

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 2 

 

ALES Licensing - Duly authorised agent for the applicant 
Tel: 07919 446 323   aleslicensing@mail.com   www.aleslicesning.com 

Information provided to the Police - Operating schedule – Description 

Family owned and run specialist supermarket with separate areas comprising of a butchers’ 
shop and café. 

The premises will offer both on and off sales. The on sales are very specific, with alcohol only 
being sold and supplied as a spirit, syrup, or liqueur-based product and served as part of a 
tea, coffee, milk or juice drink. These drinks will only be served for consumption on the 
premises, to customers who are seated in the café area as shown by a blue boundary on the 
plans. 

The premises are currently open between 7:30 am and midnight. These times will initially 
continue if the licence is granted. However, the business plans also incorporate a 24-hour 
operation for activity that doesn't require an authorisation. 

Off sales of alcohol will be restricted between the hours of 8am and midnight, with the 
limited offering of on sales taking place between 10am and midnight. 

It is not anticipated that any significant quantities of alcohol will be sold for consumption on 
the premises, and due to the conditions restricting such sales, and that alcohol is only an 
accompaniment added to a specific drink. It is highly unlikely that any of the licensing 
objectives will be compromised. 

High value alcohol including all spirits will be kept behind the checkout counter/till to the front 
left as you enter the premises, including most of the wine selection. Certain alcoholic 
beverages will be placed in one of the chiller units a sufficient distance away from the 
entrance, and in a position that is fully covered by at least one of the cameras in the multi 
camera CCTV system. This chiller can be closed with a screen shutter at times when off sales 
are not permitted, and suitable notices will be displayed to explain this to customers. 

The late-night refreshment will initially only be between 11pm and midnight, although future 
plans allow for the operation to be a 24 hour one, and they would like the flexibility to primarily 
sell hot drinks, and a few reheated food offerings. These are restricted to the cafe area, and 
after midnight will only be available for take away. This is not going to be a fully blown take 
away section as there is no commercial kitchen or suitable preparation area for this, and it is 
not the intention of the applicant to run such an operation. 

 
  

312

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 3 

 

ALES Licensing - Duly authorised agent for the applicant 
Tel: 07919 446 323   aleslicensing@mail.com   www.aleslicesning.com 

The following 7 conditions have been offered to promote the licensing objectives: 
1) - A CCTV system must be installed and operational at all times when the premises is open 
to the public. The system will comply with the following: 
a) The system will incorporate camera(s) covering the entrance door, internal licensed area, 
serving/till area and any other area used for sale or consumption of alcohol. It must be 
capable of recording an image which on playback is of a sufficiently high quality to allow 
accurate identification of the subject matter recorded.  
b) The system will incorporate a recording facility and any recording will be retained and 
stored in a suitable and secure format for a minimum of 31 days, and made available for 
inspection on the lawful and reasonable request of a Police officer, or an authorised officer 
from the licensing authority. This is subject to compliance with Data Protection Legislation. 
c) The system must have a suitable facility to export the recorded images to a common format 
that is easily read by standard devices, e.g. CD/DVD/USB Stick. The system must also have 
a facility whereby the recordings can be reviewed on a monitor or similar device at the 
premises. 
d) The correct date and time must be recorded as part of the image 
e) If for whatever reason the CCTV system is not operating in accordance with these 
conditions, both the Police and Council Licensing officers must be immediately informed via 
email. Details of the problem affecting the CCTV and when this is likely to be fixed must be 
contained within this email. In these circumstances the temporary suspension of the CCTV 
condition will be considered, and following this a response will be sent by either the Police or 
Licensing Authority to the premises licence holder. 
 

2) - All staff directly involved with sale of alcohol on the premises shall receive appropriate 
training in the legislation and age restricted sales: 
a) Induction training which must be completed and documented prior to the sale of alcohol by 
any person at the premises. 
b) Refresher training at intervals of no more than 6 months. 
A record of this training must be kept at the premises and made available for inspection on 
the lawful and reasonable request of a police officer or an authorised officer from the licensing 
authority. 
 

3) - All refusals of alcohol sales will be recorded in an easily retrievable format, and made 
available for inspection on reasonable demand by Police Officers or Authorised Officers from 
the London Borough of Barnet. 
 

4) - All significant incidents including calls made to the emergency services will be recorded in 
an in an easily retrievable format and made available for inspection on reasonable demand by 
Police Officers or Authorised Officers from the London Borough of Barnet. 
 

5) - Appropriate and adequate signage will be placed at the entrance and exit of the premises 
informing customers not to loiter in the area, consume alcohol outside or discard litter.  
 
6) - External monitoring shall be carried out by the premises licence holder to dissuade 
customers from causing any issues and the immediate area outside the premises will 
regularly be cleared of any litter originating from the premises. 
 

7) - Appropriate measures of Alcoholic syrup, liqueur or spirit will only be sold for consumption 
on the premises in the café area, as shown on the plans. The alcohol will only be sold as part 
of a tea, coffee, milk (shake) or fruit/vegetable juice-based drink. No other forms of alcohol will 
be permitted to be sold for consumption on the premises. 
 

313

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


P a g e  | 4 

 

ALES Licensing - Duly authorised agent for the applicant 
Tel: 07919 446 323   aleslicensing@mail.com   www.aleslicesning.com 

8) - Drinks containing alcohol, as outlined at condition 7, will only be sold between 10am and 
midnight on every day, and will only be served to people seated at a table. 
 

9) - A challenge 25 "proof of age" scheme will be implemented, unless a different “best  
practice” scheme is requested by the Police or Licensing Authority. 

314

mailto:aleslicensing@mail.com


12/10/2020 mail.com - Licensing application Nez 418C Watford Way NW7 2QJ - Information and request

https://3c-lxa.mail.com/mail/client/mail/print;jsessionid=BA67559E93396DC49F5B194BFB4B8AB3-n2.lxa04b?mailId=tmai163b29f951814e36 1/2

From:

To:

Cc:

Date:

Licensing application Nez 418C Watford Way NW7 2QJ -
Information and request

"Mark Altman" <aleslicensing@mail.com>

Cllr.G.Bokaei@barnet.gov.uk, Cllr.V.Duschinsky@Barnet.gov.uk, cllr.j.hart@barnet.gov.uk

"Hammond, Elisabeth" <Elisabeth.Hammond@Barnet.gov.uk>, michelle.rudland@barnet.gov.uk

Oct 5, 2020 6:50:43 PM

Dear Councillors Bokaei, Duschinsky and Hart,
 
I am writing to you as the ward councillors for these premises and hopefully set your minds at rest with regard to the business
model they are seeking to operate.
 
I have attached a document which was sent to all of the people who have signed the petition organised by Mr Patel who owns
the business at 424a Watford Way.
 
I am acting as the licensing consultant for the family run business "Nez" at 418c. They have been operating for 7 months as a
general supermarket with separate areas for a butchers and cafe.
 
I can confirm that no alcohol will be sold for consumption on the premises or for take away (off sales) after midnight. There is
no restriction on the hours the premises may remain open for activity that does not require a licence e.g. sale of a loaf of bread
or tin of beans. Whilst they will not operate after midnight until they have fully assessed the demand in the area, they would
like to be able to sell hot drinks and possibly a few reheated products after 11pm. Just the sale of a coffee after 11pm requires
a licence for late night refreshment. The food offerings will only be microwave heated sandwiches or paninni style items, They
may also install a small toasted sandwich reheating unt. There is no kitchen, deep fat fryer or intention to install a fully
operational kitchen. Furthermore they are more than happy to accept a condition to retrict certain foodstuffs from being cooked
late at night.
 
I would also like to reassure you that shisha has not been requested or mentioned in the application. I do not know where
shisha use has come from, but it is certainly is not part of the business model.
 
I hope that when you are able to visit the premises you will see that it is well run establishment and will prove an assert to the
area. It is certainly far more advantageous than the boarded up vacant properties that have occupied this site for some
considerable time.
 
As an aside, Mr Mousavi, his wife, and daughter will be running the premises. They escaped persecution in their country of
birth, Iran, and due to their Christian faith they were granted leave to remain as it would be unsafe for them to return. They are
hard working and honest people, who are genuinely surprised and upset at the campaign Mr Patel has waged against them, in
an attempt to stop them operating and obtaining any type of licence.
 
I would be grateful for your thoughts in this matter, and any suggestions you may have with regard to hours and conditions that
would be appropriate, and may persuade you to withdraw your objection. 
 
Yours Sincerely,
 
Mark 
 
 
Mark Altman
ALES Licensing
T: 07919 446 323
M: aleslicensing@mail.com
W: www.aleslicensing.com

Attachments

Information for Other Persons Representations.docx

Appendix 'E'

315

http://www.aleslicensing.com/


12/10/2020 mail.com - Licensing application Nez 418C Watford Way NW7 2QJ - Information and request

https://3c-lxa.mail.com/mail/client/mail/print;jsessionid=BA67559E93396DC49F5B194BFB4B8AB3-n2.lxa04b?mailId=tmai163b29f951814e36 2/2

316



317

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Procedure
	5 Report of Trading Standards & Licensing Manager
	Final report part 2
	Final report part 3

	5a Appendix 1 Representations
	5b Applicant's Rebuttal and Comments
	Appendix A - letter encouraging people to make objections
	Appendix B - Mr Patels pre written objection form (003)
	Appendix C - Mr Patel’s pre written objection form
	Appendix D - Applicants letter for objectors
	Appendix E - Applicants email to ward councillors

	 Site Map - Nez Watford Way



